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DR. SAMUEL WOODWARD

In 1832, the State Lunatic Hospital was built at Summer and 
Asylum Streets, adjacent to the developing city center in 
Worcester, to house 120 patients. The first superintendent 
was Dr. Samuel Woodward, who is credited with over- 
coming then-popular views of  mental illness to champion 
compassionate, optimistic, and individualized treatment for 
patients.  

He believed in “moral therapy” wherein mental illness was 
curable, insisting that patients and staff  live together and 
form a community of  caring, a concept that spawned the 
term “resident” for hospital practitioners. The facility 
provided occupational therapy, a library, religious exercises 
and games.

The State Lunatic Hospital became a model for the care and 
treatment of  the indigent with mental illness. By 1844, Dr. 
Woodward was considered a leading expert in the 
burgeoning field of  psychiatry, and his hospital was 
considered a phenomenal success in the recovery of  
patients once considered incurable.

In 2008, the remainder of  the Kirkbride Building was 
demolished, except for the Clock Tower and Hooper Turret, 
and construction began for a new state-of-the-art 
psychiatric hospital on the Worcester State Hospital 
campus.

THE LEGACY

In 1884, a national study entitled Legislation on Insanity noted 
Massachusetts as a pioneer in the development of  wise 
legislation for the insane. In his 1981 book The History and 
Politics of  Community Mental Health, Dr. Murray Levine wrote:  

“The Worcester State Hospital in Massachusetts was built in a 
growing awareness of  the problems of  the mentally ill, in a 
spirit of  reform that led to the creation of  a variety of  
institutions during the early part of  the nineteenth century.  
The Worcester hospital was important because it was the first 
that was systemically designed for mental patients and it was 
the first to be supported by state funds exclusively.  It was built 
as a therapeutic institution and served as a model, if  not a 
training institution, for those who established hospitals 
elsewhere.”

DOROTHEA DIX

In 1841, Dorothea Dix visited a jail in Massachusetts to 
teach Sunday school and witnessed the appalling treatment 
suffered by individuals with mental illness in the company 
of  common criminals. In 1843, she advised the state legis- 
lature that the Worcester Asylum was not sufficient for the 
large number of  insane people she found in poorhouses and 
jails throughout the state. This was the first of  many 
petitions Dix submitted to other state legislatures in her 
international crusade for improved treatment conditions for 
people with mental illness, resulting in new facilities and 
more humane care in many states.

DR. THOMAS KIRKBRIDE

In 1844, Superintendent of  Pennsylvania Hospital for the 
Insane, Dr. Thomas Kirkbride, founded what came to be 
known as the American Psychiatric Association. Dr. Samuel 
Woodward, then superintendent of  the State Lunatic 
Hospital in Worcester, was chosen as president at the first 
meeting.

In 1847, Dr. Kirkbride published detailed guidelines for 
design, construction and administration of  asylum 
buildings, which came to be known as the Kirkbride Plan. 
He advocated the tenets of  moral treatment, in which the 
asylum buildings and surroundings were seen as active 
components of  therapeutic treatment toward recovery—a 
healthy environment, both stimulating and calming the 
mind with natural beauty enhanced by rational order and 
fresh air. 

SIGMUND FREUD’S VISIT

In 1909, Sigmund Freud achieved world prominence by his 
highly publicized visit to Clark University in Worcester. 
Freud also visited the Worcester State Hospital. His voyage 
to Worcester was the only time he ever traveled to the 
United States.

THE HISTORY OF WORCESTER STATE HOSPITAL

In the early 1870s, the State Lunatic Hospital on Summer 
Street had become inadequate for the state’s needs. The 
Worcester Lunatic Asylum was established here, on 600 
acres of  farmland overlooking Lake Quinsigamond, to 
replace the previous facility, along the positive care prin- 
cipals of  “moral treatment” advocated by Dr. Woodward. 
The grounds were designed by Fredrick Law Olmsted, the 
founder of  landscape architecture.

In 1873, the Worcester Lunatic Asylum was designed 
according to the Kirkbride Plan by the Worcester architect 
Ward P. Delano in the firm of  Weston & Rand Architects. It 
accommodated 600 patients in 132,000 square feet when the 
facility first opened in 1877.

By the 1940s, what came to be called Worcester State 
Hospital had grown to 328,500 square feet, and the patient 
population had grown to 2,600 patients. In 1958, the Bryan 
Building was opened on the Worcester State Hospital 
campus, to house 860 patients. In 1991, an accidental fire 
destroyed over 60 percent of  the Kirkbride Building at 
Worcester State Hospital.
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common living areas. The private bedrooms are considered safer 
for both patients and staff, and are recognized as a more conducive 
environment for healing. Two or three such Houses share a dining 
room, along a path to the Neighborhood of  therapeutic program 
spaces. All Houses and Neighborhoods have views and access to 
secure courtyards for quiet and group activities. The Neighborhoods 
overlook a Downtown, and a central outdoor Village Green. The 
Downtown is available to patients who are ready to participate in 
the larger social setting, and contains opportunities for life skills 
development such as a cafe, store, library, salon, bank, music and art 
rooms, a fitness center, a chapel, and medical and dental clinics.

THE CLOCK TOWER

This tower is a reconstruction of  the landmark tower which was the 
focal point of  the Worcester Lunatic Asylum, opened in 1877 and 

WORCESTER RECOVERY CENTER AND HOSPITAL

Opened in 2012, the Worcester Recovery Center and Hospital is a 
430,000 square foot behavioral healthcare facility providing 
continuing care patient beds for 260 adults and 60 adolescents. The 
facility is owned and operated by the Commonwealth of  
Massachusetts, Department of  Mental Health. It stands on the site 
of  the Worcester Lunatic Asylum, opened in 1877.

The primary goal of  the facility is to facilitate patient recovery and 
reintegration into community living. The prime architect was 
Ellenzweig, an architecture and planning firm in Cambridge, Massa- 
chusetts, in collaboration with architecture+ of  Troy, New York. 
The architectural design of  the New Hospital supports the mission 
of  healing by creating an environment which facilitates the thera- 
peutic program, and provides dignity for patients, family and staff.

The design strives to minimizes the large “institutional” scale and 
materials of  its predecessors in favor of  familiar forms and 
residential materials. The objective is to “normalize” the environ- 
ment for patients and family members. The design approach is to 
make the facility appear less like the large historic psychiatric 

institutions of  the past, and more like a commonly familiar place 
where anyone goes to receive services in the course of  their lives. 
This effort is specifically intended to provide respectful and digni- 
fied comfort and a sense of  respite to the residents and their 
visitors. It is further intended to assure staff  and family members 
that thoughtful and sensitive efforts toward patient recovery are 
perceived by the larger community as worthwhile.

The facility is arranged analogous to the larger community, in zones 
dubbed Houses, Neighborhoods and Downtown. This layout 
offers a sequence of  spaces through which patients are encouraged 
to participate in an increasing scale of  therapeutic milieus, where 
they can test new skills for increased social interaction, wellness, 
recovery and eventual transition to the communities of  their choice. 
The Houses provide small bedroom groups clustered around 

later named Worcester State Hospital. It stands 134 feet tall. The 
carved granite was quarried in Mason, New Hampshire, and the 
course ashlar gneiss was quarried on this hillside.

This tower stands as a monument to the Commonwealth’s historic 
legacy and ongoing commitment to state-of  the-art mental health 
care and public sector psychiatry, and the important role of  the City 
of  Worcester in that heritage.

THE SALVAGED CLOCKWORKS

The clockworks was successfully salvaged during building demo- 
lition in the Fall of  2012. It was manufactured by the Seth Thomas 
Clock Company in Thomaston, Connecticut, and sold to the 
Worcester Lunatic Hospital in 1877. 

The salvaged clock assembly displays horology—the making of  
clocks—as a fundamental historic contributor to the ongoing 
discipline and progress of  mankind. It celebrates the application of  
scientific principles of  physics and metallurgy to measure time, and 
presents a remarkable artifact of  Worcester during the latter 19th 
century – when each town kept its own time.

WORCESTER RECOVERY CENTER AND HOSPITAL

HOOPER TURRET

CLOCK TOWER
2014

N

0 25 50 100

Worcester Recovery Center and Hospital Clocktower Signage
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